
City of Oakbrook Terrace 
 

City Hall 
17W275 Butterfield Rd. 

Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181 
www.oakbrookterrace.net 

 
 

 
 

City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, April 8, 2025 at 7:00 PM 

Council Chambers - City Hall - 17W261 Butterfield Road 
 

  



 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, April 8, 2025 at 7:00 PM 

Council Chambers - City Hall - 17W261 Butterfield Road 
www.oakbrookterrace.net 

 

 
Mayor Paul Esposito 

City Council Members: City Clerk Michael Shadley 

Ward 1: Alderman Charlie Barbari and Alderman Joseph Beckwith 

Ward 2: Alderman Frank Vlach and Alderman Dennis Greco 

Ward 3: Alderman Bob Rada and Alderwoman Mary Fitzgerald 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

IV. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - CHANGES OR CORRECTIONS 

1. Meeting Minutes of March 11, 2025 

VI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

VII. ACTION ITEMS / CONSENT AGENDA 
1.  Payment of City Bills:  April 8,2025  $191,859.72 
2. Ordinance No. 25 -11 Ordinance Approving and Authorizing the Publication of the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois – 2025; 

The Illinois Municipal Code requires the City to publish our zoning map on an annual basis, 

no later than March 31st if there were any changes in the preceding year.  As a result of the 

recent annexations of the Salvation Army site and 1S122 Buttercup Lane, there were 

changes to the official map this year.  

3. Ordinance No. 25 -12 Ordinance Approving and Authorizing the Publication of the Official 

Ward Map of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois - 2025. 



The Illinois Municipal Code authorizes cities to update their official ward map due to new 

territory being annexed.  Due to the annexations of the Salvation Army site and 1S122 

Buttercup Lane, the ward map is proposed to be amended to include the new territory.     

 

VIII. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 

IX. RECESS TO COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

X. MAYOR ESPOSITO 
 1.  Appointment and consent of the Appointment of Michael Sarallo 

XI. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
1.  Request to Waive Permit Fees- Oakbrook Terrace Park District 

 The Oakbrook Terrace Park District is planning some improvements at the Lake View Nature 

Center (17W063 Hodges Rd). They are preparing to replace the siding, soffit, fascia, and 

gutters at the Center.  

Pursuant to Section 154.11 of the City Code, the Park District is requesting that their building 

permit fees be waived. Cost of construction for this project is estimated to be $22,000. The 

fee would be $220. Please see attached letter from Oakbrook Terrace Park District Executive 

Director Shannon Elsey. 

 

Recommended Action: If the Council is in favor of the request, the City Attorney shall be 

directed to prepare the Ordinance to be placed on the subsequent Consent Agenda for 

approval.  

 

2. Veto of An Ordinance Amending the Provisions of Section 32.011 entitled “Duties” of 
Chapter 32 Entitled “Officers and Employees” of Title III Entitled “Administration” of 
the Code of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 
 

3. An Ordinance to Approve and Authorize the Execution of the Investigative Service 
Agreement and Addendum for the City of Oakbrook Terrace - Clarity One Solutions, 
LLC.    
On February 18, 2025, Jim Ritz signed an Investigative Service Agreement prepared by 

Clarity One Solutions LLC to authorize the investigation of the Victoria Johnson labor 

grievance. Section 30.70(a)(1) of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, requires that the 

requirements to be met and the means and methods to be used in procuring the Consultant’s 

services be determined by the City Administrator with the concurrence of the City Council. the 

Investigative Service Agreement prepared by Clarity One Solutions LLC fails to comply with 

Illinois and city ordinances in various respects and is generally unenforceable. Clarity One 



Solutions LLC began their investigation after Jim Ritz signed the Investigative Service 

Agreement, but the City Council has never concurred on the Investigative Service Agreement. 

Clarity One Solutions LLC has stopped its investigation, but has sent the city an invoice for 

$5,962.50 for its services prior to stopping the investigation. To remedy the deficiencies in the 

Investigative Service Agreement, I prepared an Addendum to the Investigative Service 

Agreement and a Consultant's Certification along with a letter of explanation and submitted 

them to Thomas Kotlowski at Clarity One Solutions LLC. 

 

Recommended Action:  If the Council concurs with this agreement, then the draft resolution 

will placed on the subsequent agenda.  

 

4. Draft Ordinance Authorizing Execution of a Legal Services Payment Agreement by and 
between Ekl, Williams & Provenzale, LLC and the City of Oakbrook Terrace; and   

 

Section 2-302 of the Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act 

authorizes and Section 32.005 of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois requires the City to 

indemnify Chief of Police and the Deputy Chief of Police for, among other costs, their 

reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in the defense of the investigation into the allegations 

regarding the management of the City’s Police Department contained in the Vote of No 

Confidence Letter.  The Chief of Police and the Deputy Chief of Police need to be notified of 

their rights under Section 2-302 of the Local Governmental and Governmental Employees 

Tort Immunity Act and Section 32.005 of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois. I have 

prepared and an holding letters notifying the Chief of Police and the Deputy Chief of Police of 

their rights under Section 2-302 of the Local Governmental and Governmental Employees 

Tort Immunity Act and Section 32.005 of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois. A Legal 

Services Payment and a letter of explanation have been prepared and can, but have not yet 

been submitted to Terry Ekl at Ekl, Williams & Provenzale, LLC.   An Ordinance to Approve 

and Authorize the Execution of a Legal Services Payment Agreement by and between Ekl, 

Williams & Provenzale, LLC and the City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 

 

Recommended Action:  If the Council concurs with this agreement, then the draft resolution 

will placed on the subsequent agenda.  

 

5. Draft Resolution Reserving and Authorizing the Transfer of Volume Cap in Connection 
with Private Activity Bond Issues and Related Matters for Calendar Year 2025 by the 
City of Oakbrook Terrace 



: Municipalities and other units of government are authorized to issue private activity bonds. 

The interest paid on private activity bonds is tax exempt to the bondholders. Thereby, these 

bonds are more attractive to investors than bonds on which taxes must be paid upon the 

interest. These bonds are used to encourage private development. The municipality only 

lends its name to the bonds to make them tax exempt. The bonds are not a debt against the 

unit of government which issues them. The private entity for whom the unit of government 

issues the private activity bonds is obligated to pay them. The unit of government which 

issues the private activity bonds is not obligated to pay them. 

 

            The federal government imposes a limit on the aggregate amount of tax exempt 

private activity bonds that can be issued by each state. This limit is known as “Volume Cap.” 

Each state, in turn, allocates its share of the federal Volume Cap to the various municipalities 

in the state for their use. Illinois’ Volume Cap is allocated based upon population. In Illinois, 

each Home Rule municipality, such s the city, is allocated an amount equal to $130 multiplied 

by its population. The city has a population of 2,690. Therefore, it has an allocation of (2,690 x 

$130) $349,700 in Volume Cap. 

 

The amount of Volume Cap available to the city that has not been granted, transferred, or 

reserved by the city for specific projects or purposes as of May 1, 2025 reverts to the 

Governor’s Office for reallocation on June 1, 2025. Therefore, if the city does not (1) 

designate a project to use the private activity bonds up to the amount of its Volume Cap, (2) 

transfer its Volume Cap to another unit of government or (3) reserve its Volume Cap to itself 

for future use, its Volume Cap reverts to the Governor’s Office for reallocation.  

 

  To avoid having its Volume Cap revert to the Governor’s Office for reallocation, many home 

rule communities that do not have a project seeking to use private activity bonds or that do 

not have another unit of government seeking  to use their private activity bonds, reserve, by 

ordinance, their Volume Cap to themself for future use. Some home rule communities that do 

not have a use for the private activity bonds do nothing and allow their allocation of the 

Volume Cap revert to the Governor’s Office for reallocation. If the city desires to reserve its 

volume cap, the ordinance must be passed before May 1, 2025 and the city must report, in 

writing, to the Governor’s Office prior to May 10, 2025 on volume cap reserved by official 

action of the city taken prior to May 1, 2025 

Recommended Action:  If the Council concurs with this agreement, then the draft resolution 

will placed on the subsequent agenda.  

 



XII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

XIII. CITY ATTORNEY 

XIV. CITY CLERK 

XV. CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

XVI. RECONVENE THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
XVII.  RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1.  Closed session to the city council meeting pursuant to Section 2(c)(11) of the Open 
Meetings Act to discuss pending litigation. 

XVIII.  RECONVENE THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
XVII.  NEW BUSINESS 

1. Motion to Consent to the appointment of Michael Sarallo to serve in the office of 
Alderperson - Ward 2 for the remainder of the term of the vacant office of 
Alderperson of Ward 2 and until his successor shall have been duly elected and 
qualified. 

  

XVIII. OLD BUSINESS 
 

ADJOURN 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and other applicable Federal and State 
laws, the City of Oakbrook Terrace meetings will be accessible to individuals with 
disabilities.  Persons requiring auxiliary aids and services should contact the Executive Offices 
at 17W275 Butterfield Road, Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 60181, or call (630) 941-8300 in advance of 
the meeting to inform them of their anticipated attendance. 



 

City of Oakbrook Terrace 
 

City Hall 
17W275 Butterfield Rd. 

Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181 
www.oakbrookterrace.net 

 
 

 
 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, March 11, 2025 at 7:00 pm 

Council Chambers - City Hall - 17W261 Butterfield Road 
 

  



 

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, March 11, 2025 at 7:00 PM 

Council Chambers - City Hall - 17W261 Butterfield Road 
www.oakbrookterrace.net 

 

 
Mayor Paul Esposito 

City Council Members: City Clerk Michael Shadley 

Ward 1: Alderman Charlie Barbari and Alderman Joseph Beckwith 

Ward 2: Alderman Frank Vlach and Alderman Dennis Greco 

Ward 3: Alderman Bob Rada and Alderwoman Mary Fitzgerald 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 Mayor Esposito called March 11, 2025, Regular and Committee of the Whole Meeting of the City Council to 

order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

Roll call indicated the following City Council members in attendance:  
 
Present: Barbari, Beckwith, Fitzgerald, Greco, and Mayor Esposito 
Absent:  Vlach and Rada 
 
Also in attendance: Finance Director T. Walker; City Attorney R. Ramello; Public Services Director C. Ward, 
Community Development Director M. Headley; and City Clerk M. Shadley 

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Mayor Esposito led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

IV. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

None 
 



 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - CHANGES OR CORRECTIONS 

 
1. Meeting Minutes of February 25, 2025 

Motion to approve the February 25, 2025, minutes of the Regular City Council and Committee of the 
Whole, as presented, was made by Alderman Greco and seconded by Alderman Barbari.   
 

Alderman Beckwith inquired if Amy Raffel should be identified as the recording secretary.  The 
consensus of the Council was that the recording secretary should be updated.  Motion to amend the 
February 25, 2025, minutes of the Regular City Council and Committee of the Whole, to revise the 
recording secretary, was made by Alderwoman Fitzgerald and seconded by Alderman Beckwith.  Roll 
call vote was taken:  
 
Ayes: Barbari, Beckwith, Fitzgerald, and Greco 
Nays: None 
Absent:  Vlach and Rada 
 
Motion passed.   

 

VI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
 Resident Edie Pajak expressed gratitude and support for Mayor Esposito and the employees of the city. 
 
 Eric Pulia expressed concerns over campaign signs in the right of way.  
 
 Attorney Terry Ekl represents Chief Calvello and Deputy Chief Clark. He responded to the statements 

made during the February 25th meeting and requested his clients be placed back on active duty. 
 
VII. ACTION ITEMS / CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to approve all the items on the consent agenda for March 11, 2025, as presented was made 
by Alderman Beckwith and seconded by Alderman Barbari.  Roll Call vote was taken: 

 
 Ayes: Barbari, Beckwith, Fitzgerald, and Greco  

Nays: None  
Absent:  Vlach and Rada 

 
 Motion passed. 
 
VIII.    ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 
 
          None     

 
IX.      RECESS TO THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE  

 
Motion to recess to the committee of the whole portion of this meeting was made by Alderman 
Beckwith and seconded by Alderman Greco.  An acclamation vote was taken: 

 
 Ayes: Barbari, Beckwith, Fitzgerald, and Greco  

Nays: None  
Absent:  Vlach and Rada 

  
X. MAYOR ESPOSITO 
 

1. Mayor Esposito thanked everyone who came out to the ribbon cutting at Bruster’s Ice Cream. It was 
a beautiful day and a very large turnout.  He thanked Dave Carlin and the Chamber who also 
participated in the ribbon cutting.   



 
2. Mayor Esposito stated the budget meeting will be held on March 19, 2025 at six o’clock in the 

Council chambers. 
3. Mayor Esposito reminded the council about the swearing in of Officer Angelo Roscoe. 

 
XI. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
   
  

1. Draft Ordinance Approving and Authorizing the Publication of the Official Zoning Map of the 
City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois – 2025. 
 
Mayor Esposito stated the Illinois Municipal Code requires the city to publish our zoning map on an 
annual basis, no later than March 31st if there are any changes in the preceding year.  As a result of 
the recent annexations of the Salvation Army site and 1S122 Buttercup Lane, there were changes to 
the official map this year.    
 
The City Council agreed to move this item to the subsequent Consent Agenda. 

 
2. Ordinance Approving and Authorizing the Publication of the Official Ward Map of the City of 

Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois – 2025. 
 

Mayor Esposito stated the Illinois Municipal Code authorizes cities to update their official ward map 
due to new territory being annexed. Due to the annexations of the Salvation Army site and 1S122 
Buttercup Lane, the ward map is proposed to be amended to include the new territory.   
   
The City Council agreed to move this item to the subsequent Consent Agenda. 

 
3. Discussion – Amendment to Section 32.011 of the code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 

 
Mayor Esposito stated Alderman Beckwith requested that a discussion be held regarding amendment 
of Section 32.011 of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois. On July 26, 2016, Ordinance 16-30 
entitled an Ordinance Amending the Provisions of Section 32.011 Entitled “Duties” of Chapter 32 
Entitled “Officers and Employees” of Title III Entitled “Administration” of the code of the City of 
Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, was approved. The Ordinance amended Section 32.011 of the code of 
Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, by adding a sentence stating “(t)he Mayor shall have general supervision 
and control of the police department and shall see that the various police officers are prompt and 
efficient in the discharge of their duties” 
 
Alderman Beckwith suggested the change to be more consistent with neighboring communities.  He 
also noted that he was not sure why the change was made in 2016, but it may have been due to the 
Mayor having a police background. 

 
Alderman Greco concurred with Alderman Beckwith after conducting his own research. 

 
Alderwoman Fitzgerald supported the amendment.   

 
Mayor Esposito added he has been Mayor for five years and has never exercised his power or 
management style over the Police Department. The City Administrator technically leads the city on a 
day-to-day basis.  He noted that he met with the Sergeants and the concerns raised recently were not 
communicated at that time.   

 
Alderwoman Fitzgerald inquired if there were minutes available from the meeting or if morale was 
addressed. Mayor Esposito stated that he met with the Sergeants to express his gratitude and hear 
their concerns. Manpower and overtime were the main issues expressed at the time. 
 
Alderman Greco noted he would like a third party looking into these issues. 

 
Alderman Beckwith suggested distributing notes from the meeting to the third party. 

 



 
  XII.       COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS  

 
Alderman Beckwith commented the tower had the stair climb for lung cancer over the weekend.                        
 
Alderman Greco asked if we were going to put lights on the signs with crosswalks. 
 
Director Ward replied that the new stop signs are on order and they will blink. 
 
Alderman Greco requested a flyer be prepared to encourage annexation. He also noted he would 
like to reduce the number of signs when you come into Oakbrook Terrace from Costco. 

 
Alderman Barbari added he was at the walk and thanked everyone who participated. 
 
Alderwoman Fitzgerald inquired about the speed camera on Luther.   
 
Director Ward replied the camera is on order. 
 
Alderwoman Fitzgerald thanked the audience for attending. She expressed disappointment at the 
recent media coverage. She noted we have a wonderful city and people. We should focus on the 
good things in our city. 
 
Alderman Beckwith stated that the Salvation Army is hosting an open house on April 24th from   
eleven to two. We should see more information in the next couple of weeks. 

 
XIII.          CITY ATTORNEY  
                            

None 
 
XIV.            CITY CLERK  
 
 None 
 
XV.    CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
                        

None  
 
XVI.     RECONVENE THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
  

Motion to reconvene the City Council meeting was made by Alderman Beckwith and                         
seconded by Alderwoman Fitzgerald.  An acclamation vote was taken:  

  
Ayes:  Barbari, Beckwith, Fitzgerald, and Greco 
Nays:  None   
Absent: Vlach and Rada 

 
XVII.   NEW BUSINESS 
    

Mayor Esposito asked for a motion on the draft ordinance amending the provision of section 32.011 
entitled duties of Chapter 32 entitled to office employees entitled administration. 

 
Motion to approve the draft ordinance was made by Alderman Beckwith and seconded by 
Alderman Barbari. 

 
XVII.    OLD BUSINESS   
 
  None 
  
 
Motion to adjourn was made by Alderwoman Fitzgerald and seconded by Alderman Greco at 7:34 P.M.   



 
  
Acclamation vote was made with all Ayes.  
  
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
  
  
_____________________________________________________  
Melissa Headley, Community Development Director  
  
Attested:  
  
  
_____________________________________________________  
Michael Shadley  
City Clerk  
  
ADJOURN  
  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and other applicable Federal and State laws, the 
City of Oakbrook Terrace meetings will be accessible to individuals with disabilities.  Persons requiring 
auxiliary aids and services should contact the Executive Offices at 17W275 Butterfield Road, Oakbrook 
Terrace, Illinois 60181, or call (630) 941-8300 in advance of the meeting to inform them of their anticipated 
attendance.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























STATE   OF   ILLINOIS) 
                               )ss 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE) 
 
I, Michael Shadley, City Clerk of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY that as such Village Clerk and keeper of the records of the City of Oakbrook 
Terrace, that the foregoing is a true and duplicate copy of 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Passed on and approved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Oakbrook Terrace 
on: 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name and affixed my seal this 25th day 
of March 2025 

 

SEAL  

 

X
Michael Shadley, Clerk
City of Oakbrook Terrace

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 25 - 11 –  Ordinance Approving and 

Authorizing the Publication of the Official Zoning Map of the 

City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois – 2025; 

The Illinois Municipal Code requires the City to publish our 

zoning map on an annual basis, no later than March 31st if there 

were any changes in the preceding year.  As a result of the recent 

annexations of the Salvation Army site and 1S122 Buttercup 

Lane, there were changes to the official map this year.  
 

 

Dated March 25, 2025 



Ordinance No. 25-11 

1268014.2 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 25 - 11 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE PUBLICATION OF A 
REVISED OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP FOR THE  

CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the City of Oakbrook Terrace (the “City”) is a home-rule unit of local 
government under Article VII, Section 6 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution and, except as limited 
by such section, it may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government 
and affairs; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Division 13 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-13-1, 
et seq.), and pursuant to the applicable provisions of Title XV, Chapter 156 entitled “Zoning” of 
the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, the City Council of the City has heretofore adopted the 
Zoning District Map of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, delineating the location and 
boundaries of the districts established by Chapter 156; 

WHEREAS, pursuant Section 11-13-19 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-13-
19), the corporate authorities of the City are required to cause to be published the official Zoning 
District Map no later than March 31st each year showing the existing zoning uses, divisions, 
restrictions, regulations and classifications of the City for the previous calendar year;  

WHEREAS, the approval of this ordinance was on the agenda of the regular City Council 
meeting scheduled to be held on Tuesday, March 25, 2025; however, the regular City Council 
meeting was required to be cancelled due to the lack of a quorum. Consequently, the corporate 
authorities of the City hereby extend the deadline for the publication the City’s official Zoning 
District Map to April 15, 2025, showing the existing zoning uses, divisions, restrictions, 
regulations and classifications of the City for the previous calendar year; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoning District Map attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part 
hereof, is the official Zoning District Map of the City, inclusive of changes from the preceding 
calendar year, showing the existing zoning uses, divisions, restrictions, regulations and 
classifications of the City for the preceding calendar year; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 
of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois, as follows:  

Section 1: The facts and statements contained in the preambles to this ordinance are 
found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this ordinance. 

Section 2: The corporate authorities of the City of Oakbrook Terrace hereby adopt the 
Zoning District Map attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof, as the official Zoning 
District Map of the City which shall be on file in the office of the Zoning Administrator. Copies 
of the official Zoning District Map of the City shall be available to the public for reference at all 
times during which City Hall is open and may be certified on request. 



Ordinance No. 25 -11 
 

1268014.2 2 

Section 3: The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish the Zoning 
District Map in pamphlet form in accordance with the requirements of Section 11-13-19 of the 
Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-13-19). 

Section 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict. 

Section 5: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 

ADOPTED this 8th day of April 2025, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES: ____________________________________ 

NAYS: ____________________________________ 

ABSENT: ____________________________________ 

ABSTENTION: ____________________________________ 

APPROVED by me this 8th day of April 2025. 

_______________________________________ 
Paul Esposito, Mayor of the City of 
Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
this 8th day of April 2025. 

____________________________________ 
Michael Shadley, Clerk of the City of 
Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 



 EXHIBIT “A” Ordinance No. 25- 
OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE  
CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS 

1268014.2 

 

 



STATE   OF   ILLINOIS) 
                               )ss 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE) 
 
I, Michael Shadley, City Clerk of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY that as such Village Clerk and keeper of the records of the City of Oakbrook 
Terrace, that the foregoing is a true and duplicate copy of 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Passed on and approved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Oakbrook Terrace 
on: 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name and affixed my seal this 25th day 
of March 2025 

 

SEAL  

 

X
Michael Shadley, Clerk
City of Oakbrook Terrace

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 25 - 12 –  Ordinance Approving and 

Authorizing the Publication of the Official Ward Map of the City 

of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois - 2025. 

The Illinois Municipal Code authorizes cities to update their 

official ward map due to new territory being annexed.  Due to the 

annexations of the Salvation Army site and 1S122 Buttercup 

Lane, the ward map is proposed to be amended to include the 

new territory.     
 

 

Dated March 25, 2025 



Ordinance No. 25-12 

1268013.1 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 25 -12 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE  
PUBLICATION OF A REVISED OFFICIAL WARD MAP FOR THE  

CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the City of Oakbrook Terrace (the “City”) is a home-rule unit of local 
government under Article VII, Section 6 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution and, except as limited 
by such section, it may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government 
and affairs;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.1-20-15 and Section 3.1-20-25 of the Illinois Municipal 
Code (65 Illinois Compiled Statutes 5/3.1-20-15 and Section 3.1-20-25), the City Council of the 
City has heretofore divided the City into three (3) wards based upon the city’s population;  

WHEREAS, pursuant Section 11-13-25 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-13-
25), the corporate authorities of the City are authorized to redistrict the City due to new territory 
being annexed to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Ward Map attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof, is the 
official Ward Map of the City, inclusive of changes from new territory being annexed to the City; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 
of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois, as follows:  

Section 1: The facts and statements contained in the preambles to this ordinance are 
found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this ordinance. 

Section 2: The corporate authorities of the City hereby adopt the Ward Map attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof, as the official Ward Map of the City which shall be 
on file in the office of the City Clerk.  Copies of the official Ward Map of the City shall be available 
to the public for reference at all times during which City Hall is open and may be certified on 
request. 

Section 3: The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish the Ward Map 
in pamphlet form and cause a certified copy of this ordinance, including the Ward Map attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A,” to be filed with the DuPage County Clerk’s Election Division within thirty 
(30) days of the passage and approval of this ordinance. 

Section 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict. 

  



Ordinance No. 25 -12 

1268013.1 2 

Section 5: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 

ADOPTED this 8th day of April 2025, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES:  ____________________________________ 

NAYS: ____________________________________ 

ABSENT: ____________________________________ 

ABSTENTION: ____________________________________  

APPROVED by me this 8th day of April 2025. 

_______________________________________ 
Paul Esposito, Mayor of the City of 

Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
this 8th day of April 2025. 

____________________________________ 
Michael Shadley, Clerk of the City of 
Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 



Ordinance No. 25- 

1268013.1 

EXHIBIT “A” 
OFFICIAL WARD MAP OF THE  

CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS 
 

 



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.2 1 

 ORDINANCE NO. 25 - 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF AN 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICE AGREEMENT AND ADDENDUM FOR THE  

CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the City of Oakbrook Terrace (the “City”) is a home-rule unit of local government 
under Article VII, Section 6 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution and, except as limited by such section, it 
may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs; 

WHEREAS, Section 3.1-30-5 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/3.1-30-5, and 
Section 32.012 of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, authorize the Mayor, by and with the 
advice and consent of the City Council, to appoint officers necessary to carry into effect the powers 
conferred upon the City; 

WHEREAS, Division 1 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/Art. 11, 
Div. 1, authorizes the City to adopt and enforce necessary police ordinances and define the duties 
and powers of police officers; 

WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Section 33.001 of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 
(the “City Code”), created a Police Department for the City and pursuant to Section 33.003 of the 
City Code, provided for a Chief of Police to serve as the chief administrator and executive officer of 
the City’s Police Department; 

WHEREAS, the City’s Chief of Police has been placed on administrative leave pending an 
investigation into certain allegations regarding the management of the City’s Police Department 
presented to the City Council in a “Vote of No Confidence Letter” by the Oakbrook Terrace 
Metropolitan Alliance of Police (MAP) Chapter 519, acting in its union capacity; 

WHEREAS, the City Administrator with the concurrence of the City Council desires to 
appoint an investigator to investigate the allegations of the Vote of No Confidence Letter;  

WHEREAS, Clarity One Solutions, LLC (the “Consultant”) has extensive experience and 
engages in the business of providing investigative services;  

WHEREAS, Section 30.70(a)(1) of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, requires that the 
requirements to be met and the means and methods to be used in procuring the Consultant’s services 
be determined by the City Administrator with the concurrence of the City Council;  

WHEREAS, the City Administrator has determined the requirements to be met and the 
means and methods to be used in procuring the Consultant’s services which determination is 
attached hereto marked as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Consultant to provide investigative services to 
the City; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois, as follows: 



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.2 2 

Section 1: The facts and statements contained in the preambles to this ordinance are 
found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this ordinance. 

Section 2: It is hereby determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest 
that the City approve and does hereby approve the Investigative Service Agreement and Addendum 
with the Consultant. 

Section 3: The City council does hereby concur that the requirements to be met by the 
Consultant are contained in the Investigative Service Agreement and Addendum, copies of which are 
attached hereto marked as Exhibit “B”  and made a part hereof and the Consultant’s Certification, a 
copy of which is attached hereto marked as Exhibit “C” and made a part hereof, and that the means 
and methods to be used in procuring the Consultant’s services are to be by the submission of the 
Investigative Service Agreement, Addendum and the Consultant’s Certification to and execution 
thereof by the Consultant. 

Section 4: Provided that the Consultant executes the Investigative Service Agreement 
and Addendum, copies of which are attached hereto marked as Exhibit “B”  and made a part hereof 
and the Consultant’s Certification, a copy of which is attached hereto marked as Exhibit “C” and 
made a part hereof, the Mayor shall be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute and the City 
Clerk shall be and is hereby authorized to attest on behalf of the City the Investigative Service 
Agreement and Addendum. 

Section 5: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval 
in accordance with law. 

ADOPTED this 22nd day of April 2025, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES:  ____________________________________ 

NAYS: ____________________________________ 

ABSENT: ____________________________________ 

ABSTENTION: ____________________________________ 

APPROVED by me this 22nd day of April 2025. 

_________________________________________ 
Paul Esposito, Mayor of the City of 
Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
this 22nd day of April. 

_____________________________________ 
Michael Shadley, Clerk of the of the City  
of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1  3 

EXHIBIT “A” 

DETERMINATION OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

I hereby determine that the requirements to be met by Clarity One Solutions, LLC are 
contained in the Investigative Service Agreement and Addendum, copies of which are attached hereto 
marked as Exhibit “B”  and made a part hereof and the Consultant’s Certification, a copy of which is 
attached hereto marked as Exhibit “C” and made a part hereof, The means and methods to be used in 
procuring the Consultant’s services are hereby determined to be by the submission of an Investigative 
Service Agreement and Addendum and the Consultant’s Certification to and execution thereof by 
Clarity One Solutions, LLC. 

 

By: _______________________________________ 
James D. Ritz, City Administrator  

 



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1  4 

EXHIBIT “B” 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICE AGREEMENT AND ADDENDUM 



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    

 



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    

 

 



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1  29 

EXHIBIT “C” 

CONSULTANT’S CERTIFICATION 



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270311.1    

 



1 

Interdepartmental Memo 

To: Mayor and City Council 

Jim Ritz, City Administrator 

From: Melissa Headley, AICP 

Director of Community Development 

Re: Fee Waiver Request – Oakbrook Terrace Park District 

City Council Meeting:  April 8, 2025 

Date: April 3, 2025 

REQUEST: 

Mayor and City Council to review the letter prepared by Oakbrook Terrace Park District 

Executive Director Shannon Elsey.   

BACKGROUND: 

The Oakbrook Terrace Park District is planning some improvements at the Lake View Nature 

Center (17W063 Hodges Rd).  They are preparing to replace the siding, soffit, fascia, and gutters 

at the Center. 

Pursuant to Section 154.11 of the City Code, the Park District is requesting that their building 

permit fees be waived.   Cost of construction for this project is estimated to be $22,000.  The fee 

would be $220.  Please see attached letter from Oakbrook Terrace Park District Executive 

Director Shannon Elsey.   

Attachments: Section 154.11 of the City Code 

Letter prepared Oakbrook Terrace Park Dist. Executive Director Shannon Elsey  



2 

154.11 WAIVER OF FEE AND DEPOSITS. 

Notwithstanding anything else to the contrary contained in this code, or any other code or 

ordinance of the city, the City Council, may, in its discretion, waive any fees and deposits 

that are established in this chapter in the following circumstances: 

(A) For the benefit of any governmental entity, except for deposits made to reimburse

the city for the costs of professional, architectural, planning, engineering and legal

services and fees used to pay the city's out-of-pocket costs, including, but not

limited to publication costs and fees for the services of a court reporter.

(B) For the benefit of a resident seeking a building permit or zoning relief, if such

resident can show that the proposed improvement is necessary to serve the needs of

the resident or a person in the resident’s family, as defined in the city’s zoning code,

who is physically or mentally disabled or incapacitated, as evidenced by a sworn

statement from a treating physician or other state-certified health care provider; on a

form to be developed by the City Attorney and provided by the Community

Development Department, except for deposits made to reimburse the city for the

costs of professional, architectural, planning, engineering and legal services and fees

used to pay the city’s out-of-pocket costs, including, but not limited to publication

costs and fees for the services of a court reporter.

(C) If the need for any zoning relief is caused by a State of Illinois, DuPage County, or

city roadway project, and the impact of such roadway project on buildings,

structures or driveways located on properties adjacent thereto except for deposits

made to reimburse the city for the costs of professional, architectural, planning,

engineering and legal services and fees used to pay the city's out-of-pocket costs,

including, but not limited to publication costs and fees for the services of a court

reporter.

(D) If the City Council approves the waiver of any or all fees or deposits based upon a

determination that such waiver is in the public interest.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 17, 2025 
 
 
Dear Mayor Esposito and City Council, 
 
The Oakbrook Terrace Park District would like to request a fee waiver for permit fees associated with 
the replacement of the siding, soffit, fascia, and gutters at the Lake View Nature Center. The Nature 
Center is located at 17W063 Hodges Rd. in Oakbrook Terrace, and construction on the project is 
slated to begin in April 2025. The current wood siding has rot/gaping holes in multiple places, and 
the gutters on the northwest corner have damage. In addition to improving the structural integrity of 
the building, these exterior upgrades will improve the overall aesthetics of the space within Terrace 
View Park. We appreciate your consideration regarding this request.  
 
If you have any questions concerning the project or the request, please do not hesitate to reach out: 
(630) 627-6100 or shannon@obtpd.org. Thank you!  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Shannon Elsey 
Executive Director  
Oakbrook Terrace Park District  
 

 

 
1S325 Ardmore Ave. • Villa Park, IL 60181 • 630-627-6100 • obtpd.org 

mailto:shannon@obtpd.org


Ordinance No. 25- 

1270506.1 1 

ORDINANCE NO.  25- 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF A LEGAL 
SERVICES PAYMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN EKL, WILLIAMS & 
PROVENZALE, LLC AND THE CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the City of Oakbrook Terrace (the “City”) is a home-rule unit of local 
government under Article VII, Section 6 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution and, except as limited by 
such section, it may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and 
affairs;  

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2025, the Oakbrook Terrace Metropolitan Alliance of Police 
(MAP) Chapter 519, acting in its union capacity, presented to the City Council a “Vote of No 
Confidence Letter” containing certain allegations regarding the management of the City’s Police 
Department by the City’s Chief of Police, Casey Calvello, and the Deputy Chief of Police, David 
Clark (the “Vote of No Confidence Letter”); 

WHEREAS, on February 26, 2025, the City’s Chief of Police and the Deputy Chief of 
Police were placed on administrative leave pending an investigation into certain allegations 
regarding the management of the City’s Police Department contained in the Vote of No Confidence 
Letter (the “Investigation”); 

WHEREAS, Section 2-302 of the Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort 
Immunity Act authorizes the City to indemnify a City employee for, among other costs, his or her 
reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in the defense of a claim instituted against a City employee based 
on an injury allegedly arising out of an act or omission occurring within the scope of his or her 
employment as such employee should he or she so elect.  (See 745 ILCS 10/2-302.);   

WHEREAS, Section 32.005 of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, entitled 
“Indemnification” provides:  

(A) To the fullest extent permitted by the Constitution of the State and applicable 
law, including ILCS Ch. 745, Act 10, §§ 2-302 and 9-102, any officer or employee of the 
city, including members of any boards or commissions thereof, shall be indemnified, 
defended, held harmless by the city from and against all liabilities for compensatory 
damages, expenses of investigation, judgments and amounts paid in settlement which may be 
imposed upon or reasonably incurred or paid by such officer or employee in connection with 
or resulting from any claim made, or any action, suit, proceeding or investigation in which 
such officer or employee may be involved, and which allegedly arose out of an act or 
omission occurring within the scope of employment or official duties as such officer or 
employee, whether or not such officer or employee holds such position at the time of such 
claim, action, suit proceeding or investigation, provided, however, that such indemnification 
may be provided by the joint self-insurance pool in which the city is a member, or by a 
commercial insurance company from which the city has purchased a policy providing for 
such coverage, in which case the city shall not be obligated to provide additional indemnity 
or defense, and further provided that the foregoing indemnity shall not extend to any of the 
following: 



 

1270506.1 2 

(1) Any liability or cost with respect to any matter as to which such 
officer or employee is finally adjudged to be guilty of bad faith, or actual malice, or 
willful and wanton misconduct in the performance of the duties as such officer or 
employee, such activity being outside the scope of employment or official duties; 

(2) Any payment, expense or cost arising out of a settlement of any claim, 
action, suit or proceeding, unless: 

(a) Settlement shall be approved by the court having jurisdiction 
over such claim, action, suit or proceeding, with express knowledge of the 
existence of the indemnification provided hereby; or 

(b) Such settlement shall have been made upon the written 
opinion of the City Attorney to the effect that there is no reasonable ground 
for any finding of bad faith, actual malice, willful and wanton misconduct or 
other acts outside the scope of official duties or employment on the part of 
such officer or employee that proximately caused the damage complained of; 

(3) Any liability judgment or amount paid in settlement in connection 
with or resulting from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding in which such officer or 
employee and the city itself or officers of the city acting in their governmental 
capacities are adverse parties; or 

(4) The cost of independent legal representation in any such action, suit or 
proceeding, if the city offers to provide a legal defense by an attorney or attorneys 
chosen by the city, by the city’s joint self-insurance pool, or by the city’s commercial 
insurance company, with respect to such claim, action, suit, proceeding or 
investigation. 

(B) The rights of indemnification as provided in this section shall be in addition to 
any other rights to which such officer or employee may otherwise be entitled as a matter of 
law. 

(C) Indemnification shall be provided by the city to police officers as provided by 
applicable law, including ILCS Ch. 65, Act 5, § 1-4-6; 

WHEREAS, the City’s corporation counsel, Storino, Ramello & Durkin, is representing the 
City and would have a conflict of interest also representing the City’s Chief of Police and the Deputy 
Chief of Police in the Investigation;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32.005(A) of the of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, 
the City’s Chief of Police and the Deputy Chief of Police are entitled to retain counsel to represent 
them in the Investigation, and the City is to pay the reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses of the 
attorney selected; 

WHEREAS, the City’s Chief of Police and the Deputy Chief of Police have each selected 
Ekl, Williams & Provenzale, LLC to represent them in the Investigation; and 



 

1270506.1 3 

WHEREAS, Section 30.70(a)(1) of the Code of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, requires that the 
requirements to be met and the means and methods to be used in procuring professional services be 
determined by the City Administrator with the concurrence of the City Council; 

WHEREAS, the City Administrator has determined the requirements to be met and the 
means and methods to be used in procuring the Consultant’s services which determination is 
attached hereto marked as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof. 

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the City deem it desirable and in the best interest of 
the City to enter into a Legal Services Payment Agreement with Ekl, Williams & Provenzale, LLC, 
the attorney for the City’s Chief of Police and the Deputy Chief of Police, to provide for the terms 
and conditions of the payment of the attorney to represent them in the Investigation; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1: The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this ordinance are found 
to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this ordinance. 

Section 2: It is hereby determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest 
that the City enter into a Legal Services Payment Agreement with Ekl, Williams & Provenzale, LLC, 
the attorney for the City’s Chief of Police and the Deputy Chief of Police, to provide for the terms 
and conditions of the payment of the attorney to represent them in the Investigation. 

Section 3: The Mayor shall be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute and the 
City Clerk shall be and is hereby authorized to attest on behalf of the City the Legal Services Payment 
Agreement with Ekl, Williams & Provenzale, LLC, the attorney for the City’s Chief of Police and the 
Deputy Chief of Police, to provide for the terms and conditions of the payment of the attorney to 
represent them, in the Investigation, a copy of which is attached hereto marked as Exhibit “B.” 

Section 4: This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage, approval and publication in 
pamphlet form. 

ADOPTED this 22nd day of April 2025, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES: ____________________________________ 
  

NAYS: ____________________________________ 
 

ABSENT: ____________________________________ 
 

ABSTENTION: ____________________________________  
 
APPROVED by me this 22nd day of April 2025. 

 
 
     ________________________________________ 
     Paul Esposito, Mayor of the 



 

1270506.1 4 

City of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
this 22nd day of April. 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael Shadley, Clerk of the  
City of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 



Ordinance No. 25- 

1270506.1 5 

EXHIBIT “A” 

DETERMINATION OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

I hereby determine that the requirements to be met by Ekl, Williams & Provenzale, LLC are 
contained in the Legal Services Payment Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto marked as 
Exhibit “B” and made a part hereof and the Attorney’s Certification, a copy of which is attached 
hereto marked as Exhibit “A” to the Legal Services Payment Agreement. The means and methods to 
be used in procuring Ekl, Williams & Provenzale, LLC’s services are hereby determined to be by the 
submission of a Legal Services Payment Agreement to and execution thereof by Ekl, Williams & 
Provenzale, LLC. 

 

By: _______________________________________ 
                                                                James D. Ritz, City Administrator  



 

1270506.1 6 

EXHIBIT “B” 
LEGAL SERVICES PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

 



Resolution No. 25- 

1272842.1 1 

 RESOLUTION NO. 25 - 

A RESOLUTION RESERVING AND AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF VOLUME 
CAP IN CONNECTION WITH PRIVATE ACTIVITY BOND ISSUES AND RELATED 

MATTERS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2025 BY THE  
CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the City of Oakbrook Terrace (the “City”) is a home-rule unit of local 
government under Article VII, Section 6 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution and, except as limited by 
such section, it may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and 
affairs; 

WHEREAS, Section 146 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), 
provides that the City has volume cap equal to $130.00 per resident of the City in each calendar year, 
which volume cap may be reserved and allocated to certain tax-exempt private activity bonds; 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Private Activity Bond Allocation Act, 30 ILCS 345/1 et seq., as 
supplemented and amended (the “Act”), provides that a home-rule unit of government may transfer 
its allocation of volume cap to any other home-rule unit of government, any non-home-rule unit of 
government, the State of Illinois or any agency thereof; and 

WHEREAS, in the opinion of a majority of the corporate authorities of the City, it is 
advisable, necessary and in the public interest that the City reserve all of its volume cap allocation 
for calendar year 2025 to be applied toward the issuance of private activity bonds (the “Bonds”) as 
provided in this resolution, or to be transferred, as permitted by this resolution; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1: The facts and statements contained in the preambles to this resolution are 
found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this resolution. 

Section 2: Pursuant to Section 146 of the Code and the Act, the entire volume cap of the 
City for calendar year 2025 is hereby reserved by the City, which may issue the Bonds using such 
volume cap, or without any further action required on the part of the corporate authorities of the 
City, may transfer such volume cap to a home-rule unit of government, non-home-rule unit of 
government, the State of Illinois or any agency thereof for the issuance of private activity bonds by 
such governmental entity; and the adoption of this resolution shall be deemed to be an allocation of 
such volume cap to the issuance of the Bonds or authorization of the transfer of such volume cap for 
use in the issuance of such other bonds, provided, that any such transfer shall be evidenced by a 
written instrument executed by the Mayor or City Administrator or any other proper officer or 
employee of the City. 

Section 3: The City shall maintain a written record of this resolution in its records during the 
term that the Bonds or any other such bonds to which such volume cap is allocated remain outstanding. 

Section 4: The Mayor, the City Clerk, the Finance Director, the City Administrator and 
all other proper officers, officials, agents and employees of the City are hereby authorized, 



 

1272842.1 2  

empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents and 
certificates as may be necessary to further the purposes and intent of this resolution and to comply 
with the provisions of the Act with respect to transfers of the City’s volume cap. 

Section 5: The Finance Director is hereby authorized and directed to complete a Report 
of Allocation Granted by Home-Rule Units substantially in the form attached hereto marked as 
Exhibit “A” and to cause it along with a certified copy of this resolution to be delivered to: 

Office of the Governor 
Governor’s Office of Management and Budget 
555 W Monroe Street - Suite 1500 S GOMB 
Chicago, Illinois 60661 
Attn: Sophia Ronis, Debt Management Unit 
 

on or before May 10, 2025. 

Section 6: The provisions of this resolution are hereby declared to be separable, and if 
any section, phrase or provision of this resolution shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such 
declaration shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of this resolution. 

Section 7: This resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval 
in accordance with law. 

ADOPTED this 22nd day of April 2025, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES:  _________________________________ 

NAYS:  _________________________________ 

ABSENT:  _________________________________ 

ABSTENTION: _________________________________ 

APPROVED by me this 22nd day of April 2025. 

_________________________________________ 
Paul Esposito, Mayor of the City of 
Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
this 22nd day of April 2025. 

__________________________________ 
Michael Shadley, Clerk of the of the City  
of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 



Resolution No. 25- 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

(City Letterhead) 
 
 

REPORT OF ALLOCATION GRANTED 
BY HOME-RULE UNITS 

 
(Date) [Due Thursday, May 10, 2025] 

Office of the Governor 
Governor’s Office of Management and Budget 
555 W Monroe Street - Suite 1500 S GOMB 
Chicago, IL. 60661 
Attn: Sophia Ronis, Debt Management Unit 

Re:  Issuer: City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois  
 Total 2025 Volume Cap Allocation: $349,700 

Volume Cap allocations granted, transferred or reserved by Issuer resolution prior to May 1, 
2025: 

Principal Amount of Issue:  $349,700 
Bond Description: Private Activity Bond 

A certified copy of allocation resolution is attached.  

Total Allocation Granted or Reallocated:  $349,700. 

Sincerely, 
City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois  

________________________________________ 
Tanya Walker, MAcc 
Finance Director/Treasurer 
Phone: (630) 941-8300 ext 215 
E-Mail: twalker@oakbrookterrace.net 
 

mailto:twalker@oakbrookterrace.net


Resolution No. 25- 

1272842.1 4 

CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE ) 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE  )  ss. 
STATE OF ILLINOIS  ) 

CERTIFICATION OF RESOLUTION 

I, Michael Shadley, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting 
City Clerk of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois (the “City”), and that as such 
official, I am the keeper of the records and files of the City Council of the City (the “Corporate 
Authorities”).  

I do further certify that the foregoing is a full, true and complete copy of Resolution No. 25 - 
_____ entitled: 

A Resolution Reserving and Authorizing the Transfer of Volume Cap in Connection with Private 
Activity Bond Issues and Related Matters for Calendar Year 2025 by the 

City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 

A true, correct and complete copy of said resolution was passed and approved at a meeting of 
the Corporate Authorities held on the 22nd day of April 2025. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the City this 
22nd day of April 2025. 

__________________________________________ 
Michael Shadley, Clerk 
City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 

[SEAL] 



1272839.1 

CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS 

OATH OF OFFICE 

I, Michael Sarallo, do solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United 

States, the Constitution of the State of Illinois and that I will faithfully discharge the duties of 

Alderperson of Ward 2 of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois according to the best of my ability. 

_________________________________________ 
Michael Sarallo 

Administered by Paul Esposito, Mayor of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, 

Illinois and sworn at the City of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois, this 8th day of April 

2025. 

Filed in my office this 8th day of April 2025. 

____________________________________ 
Michael Shadley, Clerk of the City of  
Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 



 
1272828.1 

STATE OF ILLINOIS     ) 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE    ) ss. 
CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS ) 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT 
TO THE OFFICE OF ALDERPERSON OF WARD 2 

OF THE CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS 

TO: Michael Shadley, Clerk of the City Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois 

I, Paul Esposito, Mayor of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois, do 

hereby certify that Michael Sarallo has been duly appointed by me with the advice and consent of 

the City Council on the 8th day of April 2025 to the office of Alderperson of Ward 2 of the City of 

Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, for the remainder of the term of the vacant office of Alderperson of 

Ward 2 of the City of Oakbrook Terrace and until his successor shall have been duly elected and 

qualified. 

Given under my hand and the Corporate Seal of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, this 8th day of 

April 2025. 

_____________________________________ 
Paul Esposito, Mayor of the 
City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois  



 
1272840.1 

WARRANT OF COMMISSION 
FOR THE OFFICE OF ALDERPERSON OF WARD 2 

OF THE CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS 

STATE OF ILLINOIS      ) 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE     ) ss. 
CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE, ILLINOIS  ) 

TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME: 

I, Paul Esposito, Mayor of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, DuPage County, Illinois, a 

municipal corporation, hereby certify that Michael Sarallo, having been duly appointed by me with 

the advice and consent of the City Council on the 8th day of April 2025, is hereby commissioned 

by this warrant to assume the duties of Alderperson of Ward 2 of the City of Oakbrook Terrace, 

Illinois, for the remainder of the term of the vacant office of Alderperson of Ward 2 of the City of 

Oakbrook Terrace and until his successor shall have been duly elected and qualified and is hereby 

fully authorized and empowered to assume and perform all the duties of said office according to 

law and the ordinances of this City. 

Given under my hand and the Corporate Seal of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, this 8th day of 

April 2025. 

____________________________________ 
Paul Esposito, Mayor of the 
City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 

[Seal] 

_______________________________________ 
Michael Shadley Clerk of the 
City of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 


	DRAFT City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 04.08.25
	City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 3.11.25.2025 (sc)
	AP
	25-11 Zoning
	Ordinance Approving and Authorizing the Publication of the Official Zoning Map of the City of Oakbrook Terrace Illinois - 2025(1268014.2)
	25-12 Ward
	Ordinance Approving and Authorizing the Publication of the Official Ward Map of the City of Oakbrook Terrace Illinois - 2025(1268013.1)
	An Ordinance to Approve and Authorize the Execution of the Investigative Service Agreement and Addendum for the City of Oakbrook Terrace - Clarity One Solutions
	OBT Park Dist - Siding Fascia Soffit Gutters - COW Memo 04-08-25-memo only
	An Ordinance Authorizing Execution of a Legal Services Payment Agreement By and Between Ekl Williams  Provenzale LLC and the City of Oakbrook Terrace - No Con
	A Resolution Reserving and Authorizing the Transfer of Volume Cap in Connection with Private Activity Bond Issues and Related Matters for Calendar Year 2025 by t
	Oath of Office - Sarallo Michael - City of Oakbrook Terrace Alderperson - Ward 2(1272839.1)
	Certificate of Appointment - Sarallo. Michael - Oakbrook Terrace Alderperson - Ward 2(1272838.1)
	Warrant of Commission - Sarallo Michael - City of Oakbrook Terrace Alderperson - Ward 2(1272840.1)



